
#002

President 

Ashley H. Buono, Esq. 

President-Elect 

Megan Knowlton Baine, Esq. 

Vice-President 

Michael Mikulski, Esq. 

Treasurer 

Diana Sever, Esq. 

Secretary 

Stacey Gorin, Esq. 

Board of Trustees 

2023-2026 
Eli Eyton, Esq. 

Hon. Marie E. Lihotz (Ret.) 

John C. Gillespie, Esq. 

A/finiti Bar Trustees 

2023-2025 

Vicky D. Britton, Esq. 

Nilaja S. Ford, Esq. 

2021-2024 

Nicholas Sansone, Esq. 

Timothy O'Brien 

Dan F. Thornton 

Allison Burkhardt, Esq. 

2022-2025 

Danny Ljunberg Esq. 

Jay Keesler, Esq . 

. Tori A. Schall, Esq. 

Advia Knight Foster, Esq. 

Young Lawyer Trustees 

2022-2024 

Tess Wagoner, Esq. 

2023-2025 
Ryan Slocum, Esq. 

Immediate Past President 

Brenda Roman Maneri, Esq. 

New Jersey State Bar Trustee 

Janice L. Heinold Esq. 

Executive Director 

Lisette Gonzalez 

Burlington County Bar Association 
137 High Street, 3rd Floor ❖ Mount Holly, New Jersey 08060 

Office: (609) 261-4542 ❖ Fax: {609) 261-5423 
LRS {609) 261-4862 
www.burlcobar.org 

November 27, 2023 

Hon. Heather Joy Baker 
Clerk of the Supreme Court of New Jersey 

Comments on the Proposed Disciplinary Budget 

Hughes Justice Complex 
P.O. Box 970 
Trenton, NJ 08625-0970 

Dear Ms. Baker: 

Please be advised, that I am the current Burlington County Bar Association 

President. Recently, the Association became aware of the New Jersey State Bar 

Association's ("NJSBA") November 17, 2023 comments to the Disciplinary Oversight 

Committee's 2024 proposed budget (A courtesy copy is enclosed herein). It is 

respectfully submitted that the Burlington County Bar Association concurs with the 

NJSBA's comments and support same. 

As always, we thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. 

Respectfully, 

~ rv•~~ 

Encl. 
Cc: 

Ashley H. Buono, Esquire 
President 

Lisette Gonzalez, Executive Director 
Timothy F. McGoughran, Esquire (NJSBA President) 

Angela C. Scheck, Executive Director (NJSBA) 



NEW JERSEY STATE BAR ASSOCIATION 

November 17, 2023 

Hon. Heather Joy Baker 
Clerk of the Supreme Court of New Jersey 
Comments on the Proposed Disciplinary Budget 
Hughes Justice Complex 
P.O. Box 970 
Trenton, NJ 08625-0970 

Dear Ms. Baker: 

TIMOTHY F. McGOUGHRAN, PRESIDENT 
Law Office of Timothy F. McGoughran, LLC 

802 West Park Avenue, Suite 222 
Ocean, NJ 07712 

(732) 660-7115 
tmcgoughran@mcgoughranlaw.com 

The New Jersey State Bar Association appreciates the opportunity to review the Disciplinary 
Oversight Committee's (DOC) proposed 2024 budget for the attorney disciplinary system. We also 
extend our appreciation to the members of the DOC for their dedicated service to the Supreme Court 
and the legal community in monitoring the budget and operations of our disciplinary system. 

In 2023, the disciplinary system budget included a $27 increase in the annual assessment. The 2024 
proposal includes an additional increase of $28, raising it from $173 to $201. The two-year increase, 
from $148 to $201, represents a nearly 38% increase in the assessment. The amount is significant 
and will cause financial hardship for many attorneys and law firms. 

We note and appreciate that the budget does bring the reserve from approximately 30% of the 
operating budget to less than 10%, which we have long advocated for. The stated reason for the 
increased assessment is to add staff to the Office of Attorney Ethics. The additional staff will be 
solely dedicated to ensuring more timely disposition of grievances, investigations, hearings and 
subsequent proceedings. That is a goal we have also advocated for and that we fully support. 

There is another element of the budget, however, that appears to be a significant factor driving the 
increase in the assessment, and that is the fringe benefit rate (FBR) that accompanies each salary. 
The projected rate for the 2024 budget is 76.15% of each salary. That rate has increased 
exponentially over the last several years. The rate of increase is alarming. 

We recognize that the rate is negotiated with the federal government, but the cost of fringe benefits 
must be addressed in whatever way possible as the burden of an FBR that represents more than 
three-quarters of an employee's salary is untenable, unprecedented and cannot be justified. Nor is 
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it sustainable. For context, the FBR in 2020 was 45.15% of salary. For 2024, it is 76.15%, more 
than 30% higher than it was four years ago. 

What has caused a 30% increase in this expense in just four years? What measures have been taken 
or are being considered to contain or even reduce the fringe benefit expense? 

While the cost of health insurance has certainly increased, in preparing budgets we are all faced 
with making choices to control these costs. We note in the budget on page 2 that current labor 
contracts are expiring on June 30, 2024. We believe that the FBR is something that must be carefully 
looked at and addressed during the review for new labor contracts. The reserve amount is now 
under 10% so that will no longer be a source of funding to offset these increasing costs. Similarly, 
these costs should not be passed on to attorneys each and every year as they continue to increase. 
If the FBR cannot be reduced to something reasonable and comparable, the increasing expense will 
inevitably compel a reduction in the number of staff in order to keep the personnel expense and the 
operating costs in line. That, in tum, will impede the goal that we all share of reducing unnecessary 
delays in moving disciplinary cases and minimizing the financial and emotional burden those delays 
cause to the attorneys under investigation. 

The NJSBA is grateful for the opportunity to once again comment on the DOC's budget proposal, 
and we commend the members of the DOC for their desire to ensure that our disciplinary system 
remains fiscally sound. 

If the NJSBA can be of any assistance to you or the Supreme Court in further review of the budget 
proposal, we look forward to that opportunity . 

. ----7 
~~-···· 

Timothy F. McGoughran, Esq. 
President 

C: William H. Mergner Jr., Esq., NJSBA President-Elect 
Angela C. Scheck, NJSBA Executive Director 
Sharon A. Balsamo, Esq., NJSBA Assistant Executive Director/General Counsel 
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